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ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS 1 
 

RFP #1506VF 
 

Library Database Packages 
 

Answers Issued: April 07, 2015  
 

 
 
 
Answers to vendor questions received as of the April 1, 2015 deadline are provided with the 
Library’s response.   Each question is listed as received, followed by the Library’s Answer.   
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Library Database Packages – Answers to Vendor Questions 
 

QUESTION 1 – Reference Section 11.3.3.5 “Throughout the term of the contract, the contractor 
must secure the written approval of the B&ECPL per Section 11.3.7.2 prior to the release of any 
information pertaining to work or activities covered by the contract.”   
 
We do not see that the referenced Section 11.2.7.2 is contained in the RFP; please clarify.   
 
Answer  - It should read : 11.3.3.2.  Thank you for bringing this to our attention. 
 
QUESTION 2 – Section 3, Technical Proposal - Requirements A.1. “Description: provide a 
description (300 words or less) of the product(s) you are proposing.”  Please clarify your interest in 
a broad description of bundled products, or if the intent is to allow vendors to describe individual 
products.  
 
Answer – The Library is soliciting responses in two categories, Comprehensive Databases AND 
Individual Products (see Section 1 – Overview of Project).  Vendors choosing to submit individual 
products may submit a single or multiple proposals of individual products.  Individual Product 
proposals should list the category to which they apply (see 3.04.4 through 3.04.18). 
 
QUESTION 3 - Given the breath of resources of interest and that we discern no other opportunity 
to describe individual products, and given the length restriction of 300 words, it may be that we 
can offer not more than a list of resource titles in this section, thus, we will appreciate 
acknowledgement that this is the expectation, or direction about the appropriate place for a full 
description of resources. 
 
Answer  - The Section 3 Technical Proposal – Requirements; A-1 requests a 300 word description 
of the product offered.  The following items A-2 through A-5 provide the opportunity to describe 
the product in greater detail.  For example:  A-2 offers the proposer an opportunity to provide title 
lists in electronic form or include title list web links; A-3 for date coverage including web links for 
reference; A-4 offers the opportunity to provide information relative to the products applicability 
to children and students; and A-5 offers the opportunity to provide information regarding the text 
and graphics formats available.    
 
Each of the rows in the answer table is expandable to accommodate additional information 
needed to provide an adequate response to the questions. 
 
QUESTION 4 - Reference Section 3, Technical Proposal – Requirements, L2 and L3, “Briefly describe 
any optional or alternative purchases which B&ECPL may choose, or decline, with costs separate 
from the primary cost proposal.”  “Describe any additional discounts to B&ECPL that purchase 
products from Vendor outside of those provided in the contract.”  Per the instructions on pg 25, 
Section 5, Cost, (“Cost information must not be included with the vendor's Technical Proposal…”) 
please qualify the instructions which appear to require cost information within the Technical 
Proposal. 
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Answer  - Please describe available optional/alternative purchases in the Technical Proposal.   The 
costs for said options/alternatives should be listed only in the Section 5 Cost proposal separate 
from the primary cost proposal and clearly label that portion as optional.  Similarly for discounts, in 
the technical proposal identify if discounts are available.  Discount percentages/costs should be 
listed only in the Section 5 Cost proposal separate from the primary cost proposal and clearly 
labeled that portion as additional discounts.   
 
QUESTION 5 - Reference Section 4.1.9.3. A & B, May we provide a web link to our company’s 
financial reports in lieu of the (voluminous) financial statements that are requested?  
 
Answer  - Yes.  
 
QUESTION 6 - Reference Section 9.2.3.8, Tax IX – Other Informational Material, the section 
number may be a typo since the previous number is VII. Would you like us to number this section 
VIII for reviewers? 
 
Answer  - Yes.  It should read Tab VIII.  Thank you for bringing this to our attention. 
 
QUESTION 7 - Please describe your scoring method for this RFP in more detail.  
 
Answer  - the Library believes Section 10 sufficiently describes the evaluation and award process. 
 
QUESTION 8 - Under the “Demonstrated Technical Capabilities” in the Authentication section of E- 
4, can you please describe what you mean by geo-location or similar techniques to accomplish 
this?  
 
Answer  - Does your product/service have the ability to provide direct access to residents of Erie 
County without the need for authentication to library location and/or library card? If so, please 
describe that process.   If that involves an additional cost, separately identify said cost in the Cost 
Proposal section. 
 
QUESTION 9 - Regarding Attachment D – Contract Form “Contract for Services” – Our Company 
will have their own Terms and Conditions & License agreement for product use in addition to your 
Contract for Services, how will our company contract be handled on your end?  Meaning do we 
just fill out the Exception Summary Form and submit our contract to your company for review?  
 
Answer  - Yes. 
 
QUESTION 10 - Regarding Attachment D – Contract Form “Contract for Services” section 8 – please 
explain the changes and by both parties?  
 
Answer  - Section 8 states This contract may be amended at any time by mutual written 
agreement.  That means both parties must agree, in writing, before a contract amendment can be 
effective. 
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QUESTION 11 - In B&ECPL RFP 1506VF, section 9.4.2.3, Tab III – Confidential Financial Information, 
Vendors must place the information requested in Section 4.1.11 in this tab.  Do you mean to 
reference 4.1.9?  
 
Answer  - Yes it should read : 4.1.9.  Thank you for bringing this to our attention. 
 
QUESTION 12 - In your ‘General Submission Instructions’, you specify in section 9.2.2 not to 
include ‘any cost and/or pricing information’ for the Technical Proposal.  However, for ‘Vendor 
Information’ which is included in the Technical Proposal, you ask for ‘Total dollar value of the 
contract’ in 4.1.3 as well as in the ‘Business References’ under 4.2.2.  You ask for their contract 
value, which is a dollar amount.  Are we supposed to put this dollar value in when there is 
supposed to be no pricing or cost information in the Technical Proposal?  
 
Answer  - the section is intended to identify prior or existing contracts other than the product or 
services being proposed in response to this RFP.   If the only contract(s) involves the products or 
services being offered in response to this RFP, note that as an exception in your response to 4.1.3 
and do not list said cost in 4.1.3. 
 
QUESTION 13 - In section  4.1.1 you request to have the ‘Number of employees locally with the 
expertise to support the requirements identified in this RFP’.  We are checking with our business to 
see if this is something that we can share.  Is this information necessary to include if we do not 
make this publicly known?  
 
Answer  - Note that as an exception with the explanation offered above. 
 
QUESTION 14 - In section 4.1.9, you request to have our Profit and Loss Statement and our 
Balance Statement.  What format would you like for these to be in for the document?  
 
Answer  - Annual Reports pursuant to Section 13 OR 15(d) of the SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 
1934 (Form 10K) and the most recent quarterly report, or comparable information, would satisfy 
the request. 
 
QUESTION 15 - In section 4.2.2, you ask for the contract value of each of the contracts we have 
with our clients.  If our references do not feel comfortable making this information public, can we 
omit this from the RFP?  
 
Answer  - Note that as an exception with the explanation with a brief explanation. 
 
QUESTION 16 - In section 9.2.3.4, part D. you are asking for copies of any vendor licensing 
agreements.  Are you requesting that our agreement with B&ECPL be included in the Technical 
proposal?  
 
Answer  - This request is for current licensing agreements and or hardware and software 
maintenance agreements used by the vendor that the B&ECPL would be expected to agree to if 
the vendor’s product(s) were selected (rather than a specific agreement with a current client). 
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QUESTION 17 - In the ‘Confidential Proposal’, under section 9.4.2.2 you ask that we ‘only need to 
submit information in Tab II if the proposal includes any confidential technical information’.  If we 
do not have any confidential technical information, do we need to submit anything in this tab?  
 

Answer  - Please submit this tab with the response “None Applicable”. 
 
QUESTION 18 - Please In the very next section, 9.4.2.3, you ask that only financial information 
from section 4.1.11 be included in this tab.  However, in the RFP, there is no 4.1.11.  
 

Answer  - It should read 4.1.9.  Thank you for bringing this to our attention. 
 
QUESTION 19 - The very last section is 4.1.9 with 4.1.9.1-4.1.9.3 which requests for federal tax 
number, profit and loss statement, and balance sheet.  Is this the information you are referring to 
be in Tab III of the ‘Confidential Proposal’.  Also, you request this information to be included in 
Section 4 of Tab VII for the ‘Technical Proposal’ under 9.2.3.7, do you want this information to be 
in both proposals.  
 

Answer  - The only information to be placed into the “Confidential Information” section of the 
response is that material referenced in 9.5.2 which states:  

Vendors are required to submit written documentation in accordance with Attachment A, 
Confidentiality and Certification of Indemnification demonstrating the material within the 
proposal marked “confidential” conforms to New York State law.  Not conforming to these 
requirements will cause your proposal to be deemed non-compliant and will not be 
accepted by the B&ECPL. 

By definition, material placed in the confidential section (see 9.6.8) should not be present in other 
parts of the response.  Per 9.5.3 Vendors acknowledge that material not marked as “confidential” 
will become public record upon contract award.    
 
QUESTION 20 - Under section 9.5.4.1, you state ‘One Master CD with an exact duplicate of the 
technical and cost proposal contents only’.  However, the CD package in part B, states that it 
should include the Technical, Cost, and Confidential Proposal on this CD.  
 

Answer  - The Master CD is for Library use only and must contain a record of the entire proposal 
which includes the confidential portion of the technical proposal (with the latter files placed in a 
folder clearly labeled Part III – Confidential Technical).  This parallels the paper submission of 
confidential information noted in 9.6.8.  The “Public Records CD” referenced in 9.5.4.2 must not 
contain any confidential or proprietary information. 
 
QUESTION 21 - Should all the documents and CDs be sent to the address on the first page, 
Address: 1 Lafayette Square, Buffalo, NY 14203? 
 

Answer  - Responders should follow the Proposal Packaging instructions found in 9.6.  The section 
includes address label information. 
 
QUESTION 22 - For Attachment D, it states that ‘it is not necessary for vendors to complete the 
Contract Form with their proposal’.  Does this mean that if we do not have any exceptions that 
require a change, that this form is not necessary for the RFP and does not need to be completed? 
 

Answer  - Yes. 


